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Federal M ne Safety and Health Review Commi ssion (FF.MS. HRC.)
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR, Cl VI L PENALTY PROCEEDI NG
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. PENN 88-268
PETI TI ONER A.C. No. 36-00906-03695
V. Gateway M ne

GATEVWAY COAL COMPANY
RESPONDENT

DECI SI ON

Appearances: Nanci A. Hoover, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor
U.S. Departnent of Labor, Phil adel phia,
Pennsyl vania for the Petitioner, Secretary of
Labor (Secretary);
Davi d Saunders, Safety Director, Gateway Coal Co.,
Prosperity, Pennsylvania, for Respondent (Gateway).

Bef ore: Judge Broderick
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Secretary seeks a civil penalty for an alleged violation
of 30 C.F.R [0 75.200 charged in an order issued under section
104(d)(2) of the Act on May 3, 1988. Gateway concedes that the
vi ol ati on occurred and does not contest the finding that it was
significant and substantial. It does contest the finding that it
was caused by Gateway's unwarrantable failure, and the anount of
the proposed penalty.

Pursuant to notice, the case was heard on January 10, 1989,
i n Washi ngton, Pennsylvania. G enn Stricklin and Russell Kni ght
testified on behalf of the Secretary. WIliam WIson, Stephen
Strange and David Saunders testified on behalf of Gateway.

FI NDI NGS OF FACT

1. Gateway is the owner and operator of an underground coa
mne in Greene County, Pennsylvania, known as the Gateway M ne.
The m ne produces coal which enters interstate conmerce and its
operation affects interstate comerce
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2. On May 3, 1988, Federal coal nine inspector Aenn Stricklin
i ssued a section 104(d)(2) w thdrawal order charging that Gateway
failed to comply with its approved roof control plan in the No. 2
entry at the No. 42 crosscut, 9 butt section. This was one
crosscut outby the face. The order states that the diagona
di stance of a four way intersection nmeasured 66 feet and that a
clay vein was present. Supplenmental supports were not installed.
Respondent concedes these facts. The order was issued at 10:00
a.m

3. The approved roof control plan for the subject mne
provi des that where the diagonal distance in an intersection
exceeds 60 total feet, supplenental supports in the form of posts
or cribs nust be set.

4. As he approached the intersection, Inspector Stricklin
saw an obvious clay vein which extended into the interesection.
Slate was flaking fromthe roof at the clay vein. The inspector
tested the roof by the sound and vibration nethod using his solid
wooden wal ki ng stick. He found the roof very drunmy. Russel
Kni ght, the UMM safety conmitteeman who acconpani ed the
i nspector, confirmed that the roof sounded drumry. A drummy or
hol I ow sound is a sign of a bad roof condition. Respondent argues
that because the inspector did not have a netal cap on his
testing rod, the test was invalid. | reject this contention.

I nspector Stricklin has been a coal mne inspector for 19 years,
and worked 20 years in the mnes prior to becom ng an inspector
M. Kni ght has worked in the subject mne for over 12 years and
has been a safety committeeman for 7 years. They certainly are
able to recogni ze a dangerous roof condition. The record does not
i ndi cate that Respondent's representatives nade any test of the
roof. | find that the area of the roof near the clay vein was
drummy and danger ous.

5. The clay vein was evident. Respondent was aware of it and
had installed extra roof bolts and |larger plates in the
intersection involved in this proceeding. The excessive di agona
distance in the intersection was evident, and Respondent shoul d
have been aware of it. Respondent has frequently been cited for
havi ng excessi ve di agonal distance in intersections. There is no
evi dence that Respondent was aware of the slate flaking fromthe
roof, but it should have been aware of it by visual observation
of the area.

6. At the time of the inspection, the area was not being
m ned. Respondent was advancing the beltline. However, the area
was a well travelled area. It is required to be inspected prior
to each shift, and the section foreman normally passes the area
frequently during each shift.
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7. Respondent had experienced two unintentional roof falls during
the devel opment of this area--both involving clay seans.

8. Respondent abated the condition by setting four posts in
the intersection, one next to the clay seam and three on the
opposite side. The condition was abated and the order term nated
at 11:15 a.m

| SSUES

1. Whether the violation of 30 C.F. R 0O 75.220 was caused by
Respondent's unwarrantable failure to conply with the safety
st andar d?

2. What is the appropriate penalty for the violation?
CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW
JURI SDI CTI ON- VI OLATI ON

Respondent is subject to the Mne Act in the operation of
the subject mne. | have jurisdiction over the parties and
subject matter of this proceeding.

Respondent has conceded that the violation cited in the
contested order occurred, and that it was significant and
substanti al .

UNWARRANTABLE FAI LURE

The Conmmi ssion has defined unwarrantable failure as
"aggravated conduct, constituting nore than ordinary negligence,
by a mine operator in relation to a violation of the Act." Enery
M ni ng Corporation, 9 FMSHRC 1997, 2004 (1987). The violation in
Emery involved 4 roof bolts in a haul ageway between crosscuts
whi ch had "popped" their bearing plates at |east a week before
the inspection. The Conmi ssion held that the failure of preshift
or onshift examiners to detect and correct this condition was not
such aggravated conduct in view of the extraordinary efforts by
Enmery to support the roof adequately. See al so Quinland Coal s,
Inc., 10 FMShRC 705 and The Helen M ni ng Conpany, 10 FMSHRC 1672
(1988).

In the instant case, Gateway was aware of the clay seam and
the danger it created: additional roof bolts were installed. It
was aware that two unintentional roof falls had occurred in the
vicinity of other clay seanms. It should have been aware of the
fact that the intersection in question exceeded the size which
under the roof control plan would require the setting of posts or
cribs. It should have been aware of the drumry condition of the
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roof in the vicinity of the clay seam It should have been aware
of the flaking of slate fromthe roof in the vicinity of the clay
seam The violation charged here was not, as in Emery, the
failure to adequately suport the roof. It was the failure to
conply with a specific roof control plan requirenment: when the
total diagonal distance of an intersection exceeds 60 feet, posts
or cribs shall be set. Gateway's failure to conply with this
requi renent was, in my judgnment, aggravated conduct, constituting
nore than ordinary negligence. Gateway shoul d have been aware of
the excessive distance in the intersection. This fact, coupled
with its awareness of the clay seam the violations of the sane
roof control provision previously cited by MSHA, the previous
roof falls, and the condition of the roof, nmade conpliance with
the requirenment for setting posts inperative, even urgent.
Failure to conply was aggravated conduct.

PENALTY

Gateway is a large mine producing in excess of one million
tons of coal annually. It is the only mne operated by
Respondent. Its history of prior violations is noderate. Its
negligence with respect to the violation found is high. The
vi ol ati on was serious. Gateway exhi bited good faith in pronptly
abating the violation. | conclude that $1000 is an appropriate
penalty for the violation considering the criteria in section
110(i) of the Act.

ORDER

Based on the above findings of fact and conclusions of | aw,
IT IS ORDERED:

1. Order No. 3093167 issued May 3, 1988, is AFFI RMED
including its findings that the violation was significant and
substantial and was caused by Respondent's unwarrantable failure
to comply with the standard.

2. Respondent shall within 30 days of the date of this order
pay the sum of $1000 as a civil penalty for the violation found.

James A. Broderick
Adm ni strative Law Judge



